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Bromsgrove 

Title of Court Court Leet and Court Baron of the 

                   Manor of Bromsgrove 

www.bromsgrovecourtleet.co.uk
Offices and Officers of the Court

Offices and Officers of the Manor

Steward       Mr MM Gorman

Contact

Mr MM Gorman, Steward of the Manor of Bromsgrove

Coronation House, Church Street, Bromsgrove, 

Worcestershire B61 8DE                           Tel: 01527 872711

Brief History

The Court is of very ancient origin, a Reeve and Beadle in the Manor being mentioned in the Doomsday Book, 1086. In 1199 a Royal Charter was granted by King John to Hugh de Bard to hold a fair annually on the Feast of St. John the Baptist, when the Bailiff reads the Proclamation and conducts the Assize of Bread, Ale and Leather, and walks the Pleasure and Horse Fairs.

It has, therefore, existed for around nine hundred years, and an unbroken line of Bailiffs is on record from the year 1650 and a broken line from 1423.

From the Norman Conquest, Bromsgrove was a Royal Manor and it is recorded that Henry VIII granted the Manor to several of his many wives, to Katherine of Aragon in 1509, Jane Seymour until her death in 1537, Anne of Cleves on her marriage in 1540, Katherine Howard in the following year and Katherine Parr in 1544. Queen Elizabeth was Lord of the Manor in 1564, in which year she gave the estate to Ambrose, Earl of Warwick. In 1604 the Manor reverted again to the Crown, and James I in 1611 gave it to Sir Richard Grobham, who later willed it to the Howe family and in 1682, Sir Scrope Howe sold the estate to Thomas, Lord Windsor, who was created Earl of Plymouth in that year. The estate remained in the possession of the Earls of Plymouth until their Worcestershire estates were sold in 1947, when the Manorial Rights were acquired by the late Howard R Bird. On his death he willed them to his grandson, Christopher H Bird, the present Lord of the Manor.

The Court represents the old form of local government and local judiciary with its officers. The Manor is separate with the Lord of the Manor and his Steward.

By an ancient right, the free tenants of the Manor at the Court Leet “... holden next after St Michael yearly, by most voices elected a free tenant of the Manor, Bailiff for the ensuing year. The Bailiff to entertain, at his own expense, the Lord’s Steward, the Jurymen, Constables, Aletaster, Tythingmen, Bellmen and Aldermen”.

Two Great Courts are held annually in Spring and Autumn, when Officers are appointed and the Jury make their presentments and the Tythingmen present lists of Freemen within their yield and report any deaths. The deceased’s survivors are asked to pay a heriot (a form of death duty) to the Lord of the Manor according to ancient custom. Sums received as heriots are now given to local charities.

The powers of the Court were transferred during the middle of the nineteenth century to other bodies now represented by the County and District Councils and County and Magistrates Courts. In 1977 the Administration of Justice Act abolished the jurisdiction of all Manorial Courts but this Court was amongst those permitted to perform certain functions. The Court is allowed to hold an annual Midsummer Fair and to appoint a Bailiff. All other functions are purely traditional.

Court Procedure

Bellman opens the Court. Chappelyn says Prayers. Steward swears in Jury. Apologies read by Bailiff. New Jurors are proposed and a vote taken and, if accepted, will be sworn at the Spring Court. Minutes read by Custodian of the Records, and proposals for annual levy. Proposal and election of Bailiff for ensuing year and Investiture by the Lord of the Manor. New Bailiff is then sworn in.

Bailiff to reply and announce his future plans. Proposal and election of Reeve, Invested by Marshall. Reeve to reply. Election of Officers for the ensuing year. Bellman makes his report. Steward reports on last presentments. Headborough to call Tythingmen to come into Court and present their lists.

Autobiographies of past Bailiff. Any other business followed by Steward who reads Presentments and Jury sign. Headborough closes the Court.






















